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TO ALL PROSPECTIVE OFFERORS

SUBJECT:        Request for Proposal (RFP) Questions and Responses

REFERENCE:  RFP for the SDO Solar Array
NASA Goddard Space Flight Center is pleased to provide you with the technical questions received and the responses given in regard to its Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Solar Array in support of the Solar Dynamics Observatory (SDO) mission. 

The technical questions are given below with corresponding responses in bold.

STATEMENT OR WORK (SOW)

1. SOW Section 6.1.2.1, Government Source Inspection:
Q: The section reads: “The Government may elect to perform inspections at a supplier's plant. The following statement shall be included on all contracts and/or subcontracts: ‘All work on this order is subject to inspection and test by the Government at any time and place.’ 


The Government quality representative who has been delegated NASA quality assurance functions on this procurement shall be notified immediately upon contractor receipt of any supplier / subcontractor orders. The Government representative shall also be notified 48 hours in advance of the time that articles or materials are ready for inspection or test.”

Is this requirement applicable also to GSFC subcontractors (like GA)? If yes who is the government representative?

A. The requirement will be applicable to the GSFC contractor supplying the SDO solar array. SDO Quality Assurance Personnel would typically be acting as the government’s representative. 
2. SOW Section 6.1.2.4, Government Mandatory Inspection Points (MIPS):

Q: This section reads: “The government or its representative will perform the following MIPs. The government may request additional MIPs if a specific process prohibits inspection at a later time. The government and the Contractor may mutually agree to additional MIPS.


•
Inspect 100% of the flight panel solder joints

•
Inspect 100% of the flight panel crimps

•
Inspect 100% of the flight panel conformal coating, staking, and potting

•
Rework Inspection 

•
Pre-Ship Inspection / Data Review”

 Is this requirement applicable also for GSFC subcontractors (like GA)? Is it applicable also to welded joints? As far as welded joints and crimps are concerned, relevant in-process test samples (taken in line with GA standards and in line with applicable SDO Technical specification) and associated test records could be subject of MIP verification.  Does this approach conform to this requirement? As far as conformal coating / staking / potting / re-working is concerned, GA process manufacturing / reworking / effectiveness can be properly verified on the qualification coupon. Besides these and besides Pre-Inspection / Data Review, what kind of addition inspections could be useful?
A. The requirement will be applicable to the GSFC contractor supplying the SDO solar array. In this response, we cannot reply to whether the specific suggestions above conform to the requirement or what other MIPS might be useful. These can be discussed during negotiations. While it is critical that all aspects of your proposal meet the stated requirements, as part of the proposal, you may provide alternate suggested approaches for consideration or provide additional information explaining how a particular task is managed. These factors will be considered and discussed, as applicable, at the appropriate time.
3. SOW Section 6.1.4, Anomaly Reporting:

Q: GA standard approach foresees just one NCR (Non Conformance Report) form for reporting all types of anomaly (NC is classified as major if it has impacts in terms of safety, functionality, operation, performance, reliability, maintainability, availability, interchangeability and interface requirements or it can cause deviation from qualified procedures, otherwise it is classified as minor) . Italian / European space project standard anomaly management process, foresee just 1 Board in charge of dispositioning major NCR called either MRB or NRB (depending on the contracts). Minor NCR are dispositioned internally. In section 6.1.4 we read of two US boards (MRB / FRB): is this splitting formally meaningful? Or GA have just to notify the anomaly through a NCR to COTR (which has then to organize the telecon / meeting with the correct Review Board)?

A. MRB stands for Material Review Board and FRB stands for Failure Review Board, the distinction focusing on whether it was material/workmanship/process failure or a functional test failure. If all non-conformances are listed and reported as NCR’s, there is no concern. 
4. SOW Section 6.3.2, Anomaly Reporting:

Q: The section reads in part, “. . . The contractor shall use NASA document EEE-INST-002 . . . For this SOW/specification, solar cells, bypass diodes, and blocking diodes are all considered EEE parts.” GA have in house the “NASA/TP- 2003-212242” version of EEE-INST-002, downloaded by the NASA government site. No mention of solar cells / integrated bypass / blocking diode has been found in it. Please clarify the requirement 6.3.2.
A. The blocking diodes and discrete bypass diodes are under the heading, Semiconductor Devices, Discrete. The contractor must meet the general requirements of EEE-INST-002 as they apply to solar cells. It would be appropriate as part of the proposal submittal to provide your company’s solar cell manufacturing/testing/data requirements for assessment. 
5. SOW Section 6.3.4, Reliability Prediction:

Q: It is quite unusual to have to meet an end of life power requirement in case of no, single, two, three, four, or five strings lost.

A. The referenced Section does not have a requirement to meet an end of life power. The Section requires that the contractor compute reliability. Note that the projected reliability of an array with a single string lost is higher than it is with no strings lost and so forth.

6. SOW Section 6.6.1, Use of Alternate Workmanship Standards:

Q: The section reads: “GSFC recognizes that the contractor may have an established workmanship program equivalent to the specific standards cited herein. In these instances, the contractor may use existing standards upon review and approval by the COTR.  It must be established that the developer’s workmanship program fully encompasses the specific requirements of this chapter. It is the contractor’s responsibility to list all deviations from the baseline workmanship standards and to provide data supporting their position/rationale.”

Equivalence will be assessed during foreseen reviews.

A As stated previously, it is critical that all aspects of your proposal meet the stated requirements. When proposing an alternate workmanship program, the proposal should identify any significant deltas between the two approaches and how those deltas would be met if needed. 
6. SOW Section 6.7.1, Use of Alternate Workmanship Standards:

Q: In part the section reads: Flight Unit parts shall be selected and processed in accordance with the requirements of EEE-INST-002, “Instructions for EEE Parts Selection, Screening, Qualification, and Derating (1 May 2003)”.  All application notes in EEE-INST-002 shall apply.  This document requires that solar cells be considered EEE parts.
GA have in house the “NASA/TP- 2003-212242” version of EEE-INST-002, downloaded by the NASA government site. No mention of solar cells / integrated bypass / blocking diode has been found in it. Please clarify the requirement 6. 7. 1.

A. The blocking diodes and discrete bypass diodes are under the heading, Semiconductor Devices, Discrete. The contractor must address the general requirements of EEE-INST-002 as they apply to solar cells. It would be appropriate as part of the proposal submittal to provide your company’s solar cell manufacturing/testing/data requirements for assessment. 
6. SOW Section 6.7.8, Use of Alternate Workmanship Standards:

Q: The Section reads: The contractor shall provide failure-reporting data to NASA/GSFC COTR within 72 hours of part failure determination.

72 working hours are assumed (GA assumes not to work on Saturday and Sunday).

A. The requirement is for 72 hours, not 72 “working hours.” The 72 hours takes weekends into account.
7. SOW Section 7, Handling, Storage, Packaging, Preservation, and Delivery:

Q: The same container used by GSFC to ship the substrates to GA is assumed to be re-usable by GA to deliver the integrated panel.
A. The container used to ship the substrates to the contractor will not meet the requirements for the containers to be used to ship the panels to GSFC.
7. SOW Section 7, Handling, Storage, Packaging, Preservation, and Delivery:

Q: You ask to conform to “Interstate Commerce Commission rules and regulations:” please provide the document which reports such rules and regulations.

A. This requirement is an error. The Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC) no longer exists. 

